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STATE OF MAINE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
RFP AMENDMENT # 3 AND

RFP SUBMITTED QUESTIONS & ANSWERS SUMMARY
	RFP NUMBER AND TITLE:
	202007113 - Locum Tenens Services

	RFP ISSUED BY:
	Department of Health and Human Services, Dorothea Dix and Riverview Psychiatric Centers

	SUBMITTED QUESTIONS DUE DATE:
	September 28, 2020, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time

	AMENDMENT AND QUESTION & ANSWER SUMMARY ISSUED:
	October 22, 2020

	PROPOSAL DUE DATE:
	October 29, 2020, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time

	PROPOSALS DUE TO:
	Proposals@maine.gov

	Unless specifically addressed below, all other provisions and clauses of the RFP remain unchanged.



	DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES IN RFP:

1. Part IV, Section IV, 1.a. language is amended.

	REVISED LANGUAGE IN RFP:
1. Part IV, Section IV, 1.a. language is amended to read:
a. Bidders must submit the proposed recruitment fee and mark-up rate for Locum Tenens that covers the initial period of performance and subsequent renewals, starting 12/1/2020 and ending on 9/30/2030.  



Provided below are submitted written questions received and the Department’s answer.
	1
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did Not Provide
	What agencies do you currently use for Locum Tenens services?

	
	Answer

	
	Liberty Healthcare Corporation; LocumTenens.com, LLC; Alliance Recruiting Resources; Jackson & Coker Locumtenens, LLC.  


	2
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did Not Provide
	What rates do those agencies charge for Locum Tenens services in your facilities?

	
	Answer

	
	The rates charged for Locum Tenens services vary by vendor, refer to the Division of Procurement Services Service Contract Search for the specific contracts related to Locum Tenens Services identified by vendor in the answer to question 1 of this document.


	3
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did Not Provide
	Will this be a single or multi-award? 

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to Part I, D. of the RFP.


	4
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did Not Provide
	How many locum tenens are needed for this contract?

	
	Answer

	
	The specific number of Locum Tenens cannot be determined.  The Department intends to create a list of qualified providers that would be available to provide Locum Tenens medical coverage services to the Hospitals on an as needed basis.


	5
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did Not Provide
	How many hours were utilized in 2019 for Locum Tenens?

	
	Answer

	
	For State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2019 the Hospitals utilized approximately ten thousand five hundred (10,500) hours for Locum Tenens.


	6
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did Not Provide
	How many hours of Locum Tenens services do you anticipate for this contract?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 4 of this document.


	7
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Section B, page 10
	2.d.ii/ Information obtained from the required orientation and trainings and initial competency assessment shall be used in the Credentialing process to ensure Locum Tenens are qualified to provide medical coverage.

a. What is included in the required orientation and trainings and when do they take place during the credentialing process? 
b. Are any of the trainings online for provider to complete?

	
	Answer

	
	a. Refer to Part II, F. of the RFP for orientation and training requirements.  Credentialing generally takes up to three (3) weeks but can vary and the orientation and training will occur during this time. 

b. Currently, Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) or Basic Life Support (BLS) are available online.


	8
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Section B, page 10
	3.g.i/ A competency assessment shall be provided by awarded Bidder and used by the Hospital(s) to evaluate competency.

Competency assessment is not industry standard. 

a. What should the assessment entail? 
b. Can Hospital provide the assessment for the Providers to complete?

	
	Answer

	
	a. The assessment tool must show the Locum Tenens experience and prior performance meets the position requirements.
b. Refer to Part II, B.2.d.i. of the RFP.


	9
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, section G, page 13
	1.a/ Provide a Liquidation Fee structure which charges a percentage of the Locum Tenens salary based on the number of hours worked.

Can you provide prior salaries for the positions listed in the RFP so we can calculate the percentage for the Liquidation Fee properly? 

	
	Answer

	
	The salaries for each Locum Tenens vary, refer to the Division of Procurement Services Service Contract Search for the specific contracts related to Locum Tenens Services identified by vendor in the answer to question 1 of this document.


	10
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part III, Section C, page 18
	Can all items submitted in each File be in one pdf, including numbered attachments?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes.


	11
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part III, Section C, page 18
	Can all items submitted in each File have the original RFP page number removed and replaced with the correct sequence based on the submittal?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes.


	12
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section II, page 19
	2/Litigation

Agency doesn’t disclose any litigation as cases are confidential. Would agency still be considered for award if this information is not disclosed?

	
	Answer

	
	Bidders may mark some portion of their proposal as confidential.  If a Bidder marks some portion of their proposal as confidential then the Department will provide the Bidder with a reasonable opportunity to object to public disclosure of the proposal.  The Department, however, provides no assurance regarding whether any portion of the proposal will ultimately be determined to be confidential and not publicly disclosed.
Refer to Part V of the RFP “…The Department, and its evaluation team, has sole discretion to determine whether a variance from the RFP specifications will result either in disqualification or reduction in scoring of a proposal.  Rephrasing of the content provided in the RFP will, at best, be considered minimally responsive.”  


	13
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section III, page 20
	Can agency create a document showing the Services to be Provided or do you have a specific form you’d like agency to use?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to Part IV of the RFP for Proposal Submission Requirements.


	14
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section III, page 20
	Please advise what type of information you would like provided as part of Attachment 5.

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to Part II.G. of the RFP, it is at the Bidder’s discretion how to respond.


	15
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section IV, Page 20-21
	1a/Bidders must submit the proposed recruitment fee and mark-up rate for Locum Tenens that covers the initial period of performance and subsequent renewals, starting 11/1/2020 and ending on 9/30/3030. 

a. Can agency include a request for annual rate increase with percentage per year? 

b. Is 3030 a typo and should be 2030?

	
	Answer

	
	a. No, consideration for an annual rate increase may be negotiated between the Department and the awarded Bidder(s).
b. Refer to the amended language at the beginning of this document.


	16
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section IV, Page 21
	Appendix D 2/ Provide a Mark-up Rate for Locum Tenens. The Bidder’s mark-up cost must be identified as a multiplier – for example: 10% = a multiplier of 1.10.

a. Will the recruitment fee mark-up also apply to hourly, daily, overtime, and call rates for Locums?

b. Will different mark-up percentages be allowed as industry standard for overtime is 1.5x hourly rate?

c. Is agency allowed to submit a rate range for all specialties or does State of Maine only want to see the markup percentages?

	
	Answer

	
	a. The awarded Bidder(s) may submit for reimbursement of the Recruitment Fee once a Locum Tenens is approved by the Department for hire.  The Recruitment Fee will be calculated based on the hired Locum Tenens annualized salary.  This is a one-time reimbursement per hired Locum Tenens. 
b. No, the proposed mark-up rate is for both the hourly rate including overtime.  Bidders are to propose one mark-up rate as instructed in Appendix D.
c. Bidders must provide one competitive mark-up rate for all Locum Tenens who provide services under the contract resulting from this RFP.


	17
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section IV, page 21
	Appendix D 1/The Bidder’s Recruitment Fee must be based upon a percentage of the hired Locum Tenens annualized salary and identified as a multiplier.

Can you provide prior salaries for the positions listed in the RFP so we can calculate the markup appropriately? 

Locum tenens do not have an average annualized salary as rates are subject to change based on the locations worked.

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 9 of this document.


	18
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section IV, page 21
	Appendix D 2/ Provide a Mark-up Rate for Locum Tenens. The Bidder’s mark-up cost must be identified as a multiplier – for example: 10% = a multiplier of 1.10.

a. Is the markup to be based on the annualized salary? 

b. Can you provide prior salaries for the positions listed in the RFP so we can calculate the markup appropriately? 

	
	Answer

	
	a. Bidders must provide one competitive mark-up rate for all Locum Tenens who provide services under the contract resulting from this RFP. 
b. Refer to the answer to question 9 of this document.


	19
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section IV, page 21
	Appendix D 2/ Provide a Mark-up Rate for Locum Tenens. The Bidder’s mark-up cost must be identified as a multiplier – for example: 10% = a multiplier of 1.10.

Is there a limit on the mark-up percentage?

	
	Answer

	
	Bidders must provide one competitive mark-up rate for all Locum Tenens who provide services under the contract resulting from this RFP.  Refer to Part V, B.3. of the RFP for the scoring process of the cost proposal.


	20
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section IV, page 21
	Appendix D 3/The Department and awarded Bidder will negotiate and agree upon salary/hourly rates based on the Locum Tenens education, experience, and abilities.

Is agency allowed to submit a rate range for all specialties?

	
	Answer

	
	No, the Department and awarded Bidder(s) will negotiate and agree upon salary/hourly rates based on the Locum Tenens education, experience, and abilities.


	21
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section IV, page 21
	Hospital requests for Locum Tenens on-call services shall not exceed two thousand dollars ($2,000) per on-call period performed.

Please define the “on-call period” so the agency is clear on the number of hours included.

	
	Answer

	
	On call days may vary, generally on-call times are Monday through Friday 4 p.m. - 8 a.m., Saturday/Sunday and State holidays 8 a.m. - 8 a.m. Cost would cover approximately twenty (20) hours of on-call service.


	22
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Please provide the actual hours of locum tenens services used in 2018, 2019 and YTD 2020.

	
	Answer

	
	The Hospitals utilized approximately eight thousand four hundred (8,400) hours in SFY2018, ten thousand five hundred (10,500) hours in SFY2019 and fifteen thousand (15,000) hours in SFY2020, of Locum Tenens services.


	23
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Please provide the actual locums spend per year for 2018 and 2019.

	
	Answer

	
	The Department spent approximately two point two ($2.2) million dollars in SFY18 and two point eight ($2.8) million dollars in SFY19.


	24
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	a. What is the annual budget that is projected for the contract? 

b. How will it be divided per year?

	
	Answer

	
	a. The Department declines to answer.
b. The Department intends to create a list of qualified providers that would be available to provide Locum Tenens medical coverage services to the Hospitals on an as needed basis. Division will be based on who is able to provide the provider needed.


	25
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	What vendors is State of Maine DHHS currently contracted with for locum tenens services?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 2 of this document. 


	26
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Will State of Maine DHHS allow for any changes to the language of service agreement such as the terms and conditions, indemnification, insurance requirements, and venue?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department and awarded Bidder(s) will negotiate the terms of the Master Agreement and Delivery Orders.


	27
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	What are the current hourly billable rates per healthcare provider position for the current contract?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 9 of this document.


	28
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	How will State of Maine DHHS distribute the healthcare provider positions amongst a pool of contractors?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department intends to create a list of qualified providers that would be available to provide Locum Tenens medical coverage services to the Hospitals on an as needed basis. Division will be based on who is able to provide the provider needed.


	29
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	What would State of Maine DHHS like to see with the awarded vendor and their approach to the request?

	
	Answer

	
	This question is unclear therefore the Department is unable to respond.


	30
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	How many providers does State of Maine DHHS need?


	
	Answer

	
	The Department intends to create a list of qualified providers that would be available to provide Locum Tenens medical coverage services to the Hospitals on an as needed basis.



	31
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	How can a newly awarded locums vendor improve upon the services, as compared to the current vendors and past services?


	
	Answer

	
	As this is outside the scope of the RFP, the Department declines to answer.



	32
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Are there any positions that have been particularly challenging?


	
	Answer

	
	As this is outside the scope of the RFP, the Department declines to answer.



	33
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	What is the expected average length of assignment? Please provide the average length of assignments in the past year.


	
	Answer

	
	In the past state fiscal year, assignment length has varied from thirteen (13) weeks to one (1) year.



	34
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	PART II, Section G, page #13 and 14
	The liquidation fee structure as we understand it, the rate would be higher the less hours the Provider has worked and lower as the Provider reaches the 6-month timeline.  The liquidated fee structure needs to include all specialties, such as psychologist, psychiatrist general medicine physician, PA/NP.

a. How do we locate the top step in the hospital classification for each of these specialties?

The liquidation fee must be less than or equal to ten percent of the top step in the Hospitals psychiatrist State line classification.  
b. How do we get this information to determine that our fee is less than or equal to this requirement?

	
	Answer

	
	a. Salary steps are available at the State’s Bureau of Human Resources website.
b. Refer to the salary steps for a Hospital Psychiatrist.


	35
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	PART 11, Section I, #1, Table 2, page 16
	Candidate competency reporting- can you provide a sample of what information is requirement for this report?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 8 of this document. 


	36
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section VI, #1.a.
	For the mark-up cost, are we allowed to increase the rate during the initial period of 2020-2025?

	
	Answer

	
	No, consideration for an annual rate increase may be negotiated between the Department and the awarded Bidder(s).


	37
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	What is the timeframe when the award will be made?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department declines to answer.


	38
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix D, page 31
	What is your definition of a recruitment fee?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 16.a. of this document.


	39
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix D, Page 31
	We will be providing pricing for multiple specialties for this opportunity, including psychiatry, psychologist, Nurse Practitioners, Physician Assistants and General Medicine Physicians, etc. do we need to complete a separate Appendix D for each of these specialties?

	
	Answer

	
	Bidders must provide one competitive mark-up rate for all Locum Tenens who provide services under the contract resulting from this RFP.


	40
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	PART II, Section C, #4.a., page 11
	Need additional clarification around the 30-day notice- 

a. How will the rates be prorated? 

b. What is included in this prorated fee? The hourly rate, housing stipend etc.?

	
	Answer

	
	a. Based on the actual days the Locum Tenens provides services within the thirty (30) calendar days of the notice of separation from Engagement with the Hospital.  
b. The Department will not reimburse any fees for days the Locum Tenens does not provide Engagement. 


	41
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section II, #4, page 20


	This section requires certificate of insurance be provided for general liability, professional liability and any other relevant liability insurance policies, but no specific insurance limits or requirements have been specified. Should we just include our generic, evidence of cover certificate of insurance for this requirement?

	
	Answer

	
	Bidders should consult with their insurance agency to determine to appropriate levels of insurance.


	42
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Can we include telemedicine as an option?

	
	Answer

	
	No, telemedicine is not an option for medical staff at the hospitals. 


	43
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II Sec. F, Page 13
	a. How many hours do the orientation/training sessions on page 13 require?
b. How many of those hours are paid for by the facility?

	
	Answer

	
	c. Trainings will occur within a two-week period of the New Employee Orientation. 
d. Locum Tenens will be paid for all training hours required by the Hospitals.


	44
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	What are the typical contract lengths for each locum need?

	
	Answer

	
	Typical contract length vary by Hospital based on the need for Locum Tenens services, refer to the Division of Procurement Services Service Contract Search for the specific contracts related to Locum Tenens Services identified by vendor in the answer to question 1 of this document.


	45
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Are hours guaranteed?

	
	Answer

	
	No.


	46
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	How many temporary staff are currently employed?

	
	Answer

	
	Temporary staffing is outside the scope of this RFP.


	47
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	How many temporary positions are currently open?

	
	Answer

	
	Temporary staffing is outside the scope of this RFP.


	48
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	a. Who is your current provider(s)?
b. Can they re-bid? 

	
	Answer

	
	a. Refer to the answer to question 1 of this document.  

b. All interested parties are invited to submit a bid in response to this RFP. 


	49
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	What is the current bill rate per hour you are paying each position specified?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 9 of this document. 


	50
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	a. How do you handle overtime, holiday, on-call, call back charge, and other non-standard pay?  
b. What holidays do you observe?

	
	Answer

	
	a. The Department and awarded Bidder(s) will negotiate overtime, holiday, on-call, call back charge, and other non-standard pay. 

b. Refer to the Bureau of Human Resources website for the State’s 2021 Holiday Schedule. 


	51
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Is staffing subcontracting allowed?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes.


	52
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	a. Are contract exceptions/negotiations allowed? 
b. At what point must exceptions be proposed?

	
	Answer

	
	a. Refer to the answer to question 26 of this document. 
b. During contract negotiations.


	53
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Is there a performance clause/non-performance penalty?

	
	Answer

	
	This question is unclear therefore the Department is unable to respond.


	54
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Is there a minimum pay rate (wage determination that must be observed)?

	
	Answer

	
	The Hospitals expect pay ranges to fall within industry standards. 


	55
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Is this minimum an “All-In” rate (hourly pay + benefits) or just hourly pay? 

	
	Answer

	
	To be determined by the Department and awarded Bidder(s) during contract negotiations.


	56
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Are you looking for a VMS/staffing platform?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department does not know what VMS refers to.


	57
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section H, Page 15
	Can you please provide additional information regarding the productivity metrics?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department does not know what productivity matrix is referring to.


	58
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix D, Page 31
	Our entity provides markup changes with every assignment, will it disqualify us if we do not disclose markup at the RFP stage?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes, all Bidders must provide one competitive mark-up rate for all Locum Tenens who provide services under the contract resulting from this RFP.  


	59
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part V, B, Page 23
	Do you only want pricing for Psychiatry, Psych NPs, and psychologists?

	
	Answer

	
	Bidders must provide one competitive mark-up rate for all Locum Tenens who provide services under the contract resulting from this RFP.  


	60
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section G, Page 13
	In the last few years, how many locum tenens have converted to permanent employees?

	
	Answer

	
	One. 


	61
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part VI, Section A(1).  Page 24.
	a. Will the DHHS consider redlines/exceptions to the master services agreement? 
b. If so, how should these be submitted.

	
	Answer

	
	a. Refer to the answer to question 26 of this document. 
b. During contract negotiations.


	62
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part VI, Section A(1).  Page 24.
	a. Will the DHHS consider adding terms to the master services agreement to address the scope being provided?  
b. If so, how should these be submitted.

	
	Answer

	
	a. Refer to the answer to question 26 of this document. 

b. During contract negotiations.


	63
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part VI, Section A(1).  Page 24.
	Which specific forms and Riders does the DHHS anticipate including in the awarded contract?

	
	Answer

	
	Forms and contract documents commonly used by the Department can be found on the Department’s Division of Contract Management website.


	64
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 24/Part VI/#1


	This RFP states contracts will be negotiated after award, yet also refers to standard documents on the Maine procurement website. 

a. We just wanted to confirm there is no expectation to address terms in any documents on the Maine procurement site.  

b. If the State does expect the topic to be addressed, could you specify which documents to review?

	
	Answer

	
	a. Bidders are not required to address terms of the contract within their proposal.
b. N/A


	65
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 9/Part II/B.
	What is the expected process and timeline for notifying vendor of needs, reviewing candidates, scheduling providers, etc.?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department and awarded Bidder(s) will negotiate a process.  The timeline for notifying an awarded Bidder will be determined on an as needed basis to ensure the Hospitals have the necessary coverage to ensure patients’ needs are met.  


	66
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	What are the provider specialties utilized most in the last year’s contract?

	
	Answer

	
	Psychiatrist.


	67
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Are there any small business subcontracting requirements associated with this RFP?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the Department’s Rider D. 


	68
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	What are the current challenges/obstacles in meeting staffing and recruitment goals for these positions?

	
	Answer

	
	As this is outside the scope of the RFP, the Department declines to answer.


	69
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	If a contract for the proposed services is in place, what areas of improvement over the existing contract would you like to see?

	
	Answer

	
	As this is outside the scope of the RFP, the Department declines to answer.


	70
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Are there any specific state or county registration that vendors are required to obtain and maintain throughout contract term?

	
	Answer

	
	Bidders should seek legal counsel to determine if there are any specific State/county registrations required within the State.


	71
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Are there penalties incurred if unable to fill any of the openings?

	
	Answer

	
	No. 


	72
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Is there an incumbent and current contract for this service? If so, can you please provide the vendor name and current contract rate?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 1 of this document. 


	73
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	How many hours were billed per specialty in the last 12 months?

	
	Answer

	
	The total locum hours for SFY20 was fifteen thousand (15,000), the Department does not have the breakdown by specialty at this time. 


	74
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	What is the estimated time frame of notice before a need becomes available?

	
	Answer

	
	The estimated timeframe can vary depending on the Hospital need. However, notice is given as soon as possible. 


	75
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	a. Based on historical usage, how long was the typical locum tenens assignment? 

b. And is that same assignment length anticipated during this contract term?

	
	Answer

	
	a. Refer to the answer to question 33 of this document.
b. Yes.


	76
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 9/Part II/B
	What is the expected process and timeline for notifying vendor of needs, reviewing candidates, scheduling providers, etc.?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 65 of this document. 


	77
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 31/Appendix D


	a. Will price adjustments (i.e. increases to the multipliers) be allowed for the renewal periods? 

b. Must that increase for renewal be included with the proposal or would it be discussed and negotiated at time of renewal?

	
	Answer

	
	a. Refer to the answer to question 15.a. of this document.
b. Refer to the answer to question 15.a. of this document.


	78
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	a. Are different multipliers for different specialties allowed? 

b. If so, for the purposes of this bid should specialties be Psychiatry, FP/IM and Advanced Practice Psychiatry and Advanced Practice FP/IM?

	
	Answer

	
	a. No, Bidders must provide one competitive mark-up rate for all Locum Tenens who provide services under the contract resulting from this RFP.
b. N/A


	79
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	a. What are the usual orientation requirements for a locums provider? 

b. Could you confirm that orientation hours are billable just as if the provider is working locums?

	
	Answer

	
	a. All new Locum Tenens will be required to participate in the two-week New Employee Orientation.
b. Locum Tenens will be paid for all training hours required by the Hospitals.


	80
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 11/Part II/D/#1
	Locum tenens physician are Independent Contractors and as such are not employees.  Therefore, Worker’s Compensation insurance would not be applicable.  Will you waive these requirements for physicians?

	
	Answer

	
	Bidders are required to adhere to any applicable State and Federal regulations related to Independent Contractors and Employees.


	81
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 11/Part II/D/#1
	Will you consider $1M per occurrence/$3M aggregate insurance limits?

	
	Answer

	
	Bidders should consult with their insurance agency to determine to appropriate levels of insurance.


	82
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 9/Part II/B./#2/c.
	What is the expected time for the completion of credentialing for an accepted candidate?

	
	Answer

	
	Credentialing generally takes up to three (3) weeks but can vary. 


	83
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	For psychiatry needs: is your patient population 100% adult patients or do you also treat child and adolescents?

	
	Answer

	
	Adults.


	84
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	For Psychiatry: If child/adolescent needs are needed; does the provider have to be BC in Psychiatry with child/adolescent experience or does the provider have to be BC in child/adolescent?

	
	Answer

	
	Children/adolescents do not receive services at the Hospitals.


	85
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	a. Is Telepsychiatry or Telemedicine an option for coverage? 
b. If so, do you have your own platform/service provider?

	
	Answer

	
	a. Refer to the answer to question 42 of this document. 
b. N/A.


	86
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	If yes to TelePsychiatry or Telemedicine, please add these following questions:

a. Can we add pricing for Telehealth options?

b. If considering telepsychiatry or telemedicine would you need providers, platform and equipment?

c. Will providers need to be at one of your locations to provide services? Or will they be able to provide services from any remote location?

d. What is the expected need of on-site coverage vs tele coverage?

e. Is the initial provider/patient encounter required to be in person?

f. What are the possible patient encounter locations for 24/7 coverage (home, facility, etc)?

g. Will all patient interactions be in one of the designated locations or is direct to patient (home/office? An option?

h. If a telehealth platform is needed: is scheduling within the platform required? 
i. Is equipment (non-proprietary) needed at facilities conduction the encounters?

	
	Answer

	
	N/A, refer to the answer to question 42 of this document. 


	87
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 9/Part II/A./#1/b.
	Would the interview be in person or phone interview be accepted?

	
	Answer

	
	Interviews may be in-person or via telephone/Microsoft Teams/Zoom interviews as needed. 


	88
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 10/Part II/B./#2/d./i.
	Would the providers be compensated for orientation and training?

	
	Answer

	
	Locum Tenens will be paid for orientation and training hours required by the Hospitals.


	89
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Termination / Resignation Requirements

C. 4. A.- Page 11
	What is the specific calculation for proration formula, including the fee at risk?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 40 of this document.


	90
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General Requirements 

D.2. Page 11
	If the Department, does not choose to provide housing, will the cost of housing be reimbursed to Bidder?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes, housing stipend shall not exceed three thousand dollars ($3,000) per month and will be determined on a case by case basis.


	91
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General Requirements

D.4.a. Page 11
	The hourly wage for individual Locum Tenens will be negotiated with the Hospital(s) and awarded Bidder. Does that specifically refer to the wage the provider will receive or the rate the Hospital(s) will be billed?

	
	Answer

	
	The hourly wage is the amount paid to the Locum Tenens for Engagement and will be reimbursed by the Department to the awarded Bidder(s) along with the mark-up rate.  


	92
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General Requirements

D. 5. Page 12
	Will each successful Bidder receive the opportunity to meet with the Departments to develop a staffing plan and budget, as referenced?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes.


	93
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Conversion of the Locums Tenens to State Employment

G. 1 a. iii – Page 14
	Please provide “… the top step in the Hospitals psychiatrist State line classification…”, for the current fiscal year.

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answers to question 34 of this document.


	94
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part I – Introduction

Page 6
	a. Is the amount budgeted for locum tenens use expected to increase from approx. 4.8 million for the upcoming fiscal year? 
b. Could you provide an estimate of the dollar spend or percentage increase?

	
	Answer

	
	a. The Department declines to answer.
b. The Department declines to answer.


	95
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Recruitment Requirements

Part 2 A.1.a – Page 9
	It appears a successful Bidder will be required to have at least one candidate deemed acceptable to Hospital(s) within 15 calendar days of the order. 
a. Please indicate if the Hospital(s) will name clear within 2 calendar days. 
b. Further, what is the process (phone interviews, etc.) the Hospital will follow to deem a candidate acceptable, and how long that process normally will take.  

	
	Answer

	
	a. The Department cannot commit to a 2 calendar day approval of any candidate. 
b. The process will be determined on a case by case basis, refer to the answer to question 82 for the anticipated timeframe. 


	96
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Recruitment Requirements

Part 2 A.1.b – Page 9
	a. What percentage of locum tenens candidates are anticipated to be interviewed on site, prior to acceptance by the Hospital(s)? 
b. Will this be a normal occurrence?

	
	Answer

	
	a. Generally, the Hospitals will require the top two (2) or three (3) candidates to be interviewed via phone or video.
b. Yes. 


	97
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General Requirements

D 8 – Page 12
	a. Please provide an estimate of the number of annual hours of locum tenens services anticipated to be performed remotely. 
b. Approximately how many hours have been remotely in the current or past fiscal year?

	
	Answer

	
	a. None, all Locum Tenens Engagement is required to be performed within the Hospital.
b. N/A.


	98
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part IV, Section IV, 1 a – Page 20
	a. What is the formula the State wishes to use in calculating the “markup rate? 
b. Specifically, is the percentage markup based on the cost of labor alone? Or, is it to be expressed as a percentage of all costs incurred? 

c. Also, how is overtime or holiday coverage impacted by this calculation (Does the State contemplate paying a premium rate for holiday work, and approved overtime?) 

d. And since call is contemplated and to be paid separately, how is it to be expressed in the markup calculation?

	
	Answer

	
	a. It is at the Bidder’s discretion to propose a single mark-up rate
b. It is at the Bidder’s discretion to propose a single mark-up rate
c. Yes.
d. The mark-up may be invoiced for on-call hours.


	99
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Can the State provide a break out of the 4.8 million of spend or the hours utilized by provider category; (Psychiatrists, General Medical Physicians, Psychologists, Physician Assistants, and Nurse Practitioners.)? 

	
	Answer

	
	The Department does not have this data at this time.
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